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       May 23, 2023 
 
Douglas & Lucille Carman 
192 2nd Ave 
Estell Manor, NJ 08319 
 
 Re: Application # 2006-0275.001 
  Block 22, Lot 39 & 40 
  City of Estell Manor 
 
Dear Mr. & Mrs. Carman: 
 
Based on observations from 2nd Ave and available information, approximately 39,000 square feet of 
vegetation (15,000 square feet on Lot 40 and 24,000 square feet on Lot 39) has been cleared behind and 
west of the existing single family dwelling on the above referenced 10 acre parcel.  The purpose of the 
vegetation removal is unclear. Available information indicates that you are the current owners of the 
parcel.  Please advise us, in writing, if that is incorrect.  
 
On February 15, 2007, an application was completed with the Commission and the City of Estell Manor 
and issued a Preliminary Zoning Permit (PZP) for the development of a dwelling on 4.9 acre Lot 40.  As 
part of that application to meet threatened and endangered species (T&E) protection standards, the 
applicant recorded a deed restriction (enclosed) on a 3.938 acre portion of Lot 40 prohibiting any future 
clearing, land disturbance or other development outside of the area identified “development envelope” 
as depicted on the plan prepared by Schaeffer Nassar Scheidegg dated 4/21/2007.   
 
All vegetation clearing that has occurred on Lot 40 outside of the “development envelope” depicted on 
the above referenced plan constitutes a violation of the T&E protection standards of the City land use 
ordinance and the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). To resolve the violation, the 
entirety of the clearing on Lot 40 must be restored to previous undisturbed conditions.   
 
As for the 24,000 square feet of vegetation clearing that occurred on adjacent Lot 39, the purpose of the 
vegetation removal on Lot 39 is unclear.  Additionally, it is unclear whether the concerned clearing is 
consistent with the T&E protection standards of the City land use ordinance and the CMP. To resolve 
the violation, the entirety of the clearing on Lot 39 must be restored to previous undisturbed conditions.  
 
To resolve the violation, please submit the following information to the Commission within 30 days of 
this letter: 
 

1. A restoration plan proposing to restore the entirety of the concerned clearing outside of the 
“development envelope” on the above referenced plan to previous undisturbed conditions. A 
restoration plan could be a written proposal accompanied by a hand drawn sketch depicting the 



2 

approximate location of the clearing and the type, quantity, size, and location of native Pinelands 
vegetation to be replanted. Native Pinelands Plants for the Landscape has been enclosed as 
guidance. Please note that suitably sized seedlings (at least 3 to 4 inches) spaced no greater than 
10 feet apart are acceptable to the Commission. The plan should include provisions for the 
replanting of vegetation that does not survive and for the elimination of non-native invasive 
species which may become established in the disturbed area. The restoration plan must also 
specify a time frame for replanting, including a date by which planting will be completed. No 
restoration should begin until you have received a written response from the Commission staff 
indicating agreement with the proposed restoration plan.   
 

Alternatively, if you wish to propose for a portion or all of the concerned clearing to remain, please 
submit a written response, within 30 days of this letter, indicating the purpose of the clearing and we 
will provide further guidance.  Note that to proceed under this option it will also be necessary to submit 
the results of additional information, such as the results of a full T&E species survey by a qualified 
professional, demonstrating that the concerned clearing will not have an irreversible adverse impact on 
habitats critical to the survival of T&E species.  
 
By copy of this letter, we are notifying Estell Manor City officials of this matter. 
 
Please submit all application-related materials, including large reports and plans, in digital format to 
appinfo@pinelands.nj.gov. All plans must be in .pdf format. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Devin Williamson of our staff. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 April Field 
 Chief Permit Administrator 
 
enc: Native Pinelands Plants for the Landscape 
 4/24/2007 Recorded T&E Deed Restriction 
 (Above form(s) may be found at nj.gov/pinelands/appli/tools/.) 
 
c:  Secretary, City of Estell Manor Planning Board (via email) 
 City of Estell Manor Administrator (via email) 
 City of Estell Manor Zoning Officer (via email) 
 City of Estell Manor Construction Code Official (via email) 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.nj.gov/pinelands/infor/fact/Native%20Pinelands%20Plants%20for%20the%20Landscape%20Fact%20Sheet.pdf
mailto:appinfo@pinelands.nj.gov
https://www.nj.gov/pinelands/infor/fact/Native%20Pinelands%20Plants%20for%20the%20Landscape%20Fact%20Sheet.pdf
https://www.state.nj.us/pinelands/appli/tools/
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